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A Pre-Proposal Conference to hear questions, etc. from contractors proposing to bid on the RFP 

issued for Medical Services. 

 

After introduction of everyone, Michelle Jackson, (Purchasing Manager) asked Major Flippin to 

take everyone on tour of the Medical Department and pertinent areas of the facility.  The 

contractors present were instructed that there would be no questions asked during the tour.  

Questions will be taken after the tour. 

The following questions were asked during the meeting: 

 

Person asking the question: Lori Peters with CCS 

Q: Are sick calls performed in Housing Units? 

A: Yes, they can be performed in the pod triage room. 

Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: Is it the vendors’ responsibility to supply printers, computers and copiers? 

A: Yes 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: RFP states the American Psychiatric Association’s Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (4) 

of Mental Disorders shall be the basis for service consideration.  Does the RRJA approve the use 

of the most current volume of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (DSM-5)? 

A: Yes the most current one. 

Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: Does RRJA own the JMS?  

A: Yes. Vendor has to also own a server or the ability to access a cloud or hosted service for 

their system. Refer to question 143. 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: Can vendors be provided with a list of mental health groups? 

A: Yes.  The current vendor does not provide any mental health group counseling sessions.  

The focus of mental health services is individual counseling and risk management. 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: What counties does RRJA serve? 

A: City of Colonial Heights, City of Hopewell,  City of Petersburg, Charles City County,  

Chesterfield County, Prince George County and Surry County, 
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Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: Is current staffing adequate? 

A: The Vendor should develop an appropriate staffing plan to meet the requirements of the 

RFP. 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: Conflict of reference requirements 4.2.3 

A: Will research 

 An addendum will be issued to change Section 4.2.3 to read  

Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with jails 

with rated capacities in excess of 1,000.  Contracts with reference jails must have been in 

effect for at least one year and at least three of the references must be from current 

contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be disqualified. 

Exhibit 2 shall be changed to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: Are mental health staff required to be licensed? 

A: Yes 

Person asking the question: Denise Rahaman with CFG 

Q: Should the old or new NCCHC standards be referenced? 

A: New NCCHC standards should be referenced 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: Does the psychologist have to be onsite? 

A: No preference 

Person asking the question: Denise Rahaman with CFG 

Q: Section 7.13.5 states Mantoux skin test within 7 days and Section 7.20.6 states 14.  

Which is correct? 

A: Will look into.   

The correct amount of days is 7. 
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Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: Statistical mental health case load in exhibit shows 6001 for the month of May.  Is this 

correct? 

A: Correct number is 601 

Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: How many Medicaid eligible identified inmates does RRJA currently house? 

A: Estimated about 60 

Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: Who is the primary referral vendor? 

A: Southside Regional Medical Center is the current vendor. Medical vendor will decide 

and negotiate contract. 

Person asking the question: Bob Marcello with Armor Correctional 

Q: How many safety cells for suicide and how many levels? 

A: Nine cells and three levels 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: What is the current 340B program? 

A: RRJA does not currently have a 340B program. Michelle Jackson will look into the 

requirement on the RFP. 

Addendum will be issued to change Section 7.13.7 to read as follows: 

“The Contractor shall have a written plan that addresses HIV infection.  The plan shall 

include procedures for the identification; surveillance; immunization, when applicable; 

treatment, when indicated; follow-up; and isolation, when indicated.1  The Contractor 

shall make every effort to establish a 340B pharmacy program or a reasonable cause as 

to why not within 6 month of contract start.” 

Person asking the question: Mandy Gibson with Mediko 

Q: Does RRJA treat substance abuse disorders? 

A: Yes 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
1 ACA – 4-ALDF-4C-17 
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Person asking the question: George Krom with CMC 

Q: RFP states bidders must submit three client references from jails that have average daily 

populations (ADPs) greater than 1,000, with contracts in effect for more than one year – 

but then the same section goes on to say that at least five of the references must be from 

current contracts.  Which is correct? 

A: Michelle Jackson will look into the requirement on the RFP. 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 4.2.3 to read  

Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with jails 

with rated capacities in excess of 1,000.  Contracts with reference jails must have been in 

effect for at least one year and at least three of the references must be from current 

contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be disqualified. 

Exhibit 2 shall be changed to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 

Person asking the question: George Krom with CMC 

Q: Something about vacancy penalties? 

A: Will resolve with vendor in contract negations  

Person asking the question: Denise Rahaman with CFG 

Q: Since RRJA has a preference for current medical staff would the RRJA consider 

amending the specifications to say that this information must be provided subsequent to 

contract award, but prior to contract start-up or at least be willing to accept detailed job 

descriptions instead?     

A: No 

Person asking the question: Jeff Burkett with Wexford Health 

Q: Does RRJA desire for current staff to be retained? 

A: No objections 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: Is wireless throughout the facility? 

A: Yes 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: Has pharmacy contract been established? 

A: No 
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Person asking the question: Wayne Wing with CFG 

Q: Are computers maintained by staff of RRJA? 

A: No, successful vendor will be responsible for maintaining their own equipment. 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: Does current medical equipment need to be replaced? 

A: Not that we are aware of. 

Person asking the question: Larry Doll with CCS 

Q: Are dental sick calls required to use dental hygienist? 

A: No 

Questions submitted by Contractors 

CFG Health Systems, LLC :    
 

1) Would the RRJA be amenable to the use of telepsychiatric services as part of the mental 

health program? 
 

Yes, we are open to tele-psychiatric services. 

 

2) Would the RRJA be amenable to the use of telemedicine services as part of specialty 

clinics? 
 

Yes, we are open to telemedicine services. 
 

3) Pages 4-5 of the RFP state that questions must be submitted by 9/28/2018; however, pg. 

88 says questions can be submitted up to five days prior to the bid due date.  Which is 

correct? 
 

The questions are due on September 28, 2018 by 4:00 pm eastern standard time. 
 

4) Page 5 says notice of contract renewal/termination is to be at least 120 days prior to term 

end; however, pg. 97 says within 90 days (Section 10.24). 
 

Section 10.24 and section 1.4 are discussing two different areas.  Section 10.24 

Renewal of Contract states “Written notices of RRJA’s intention to renew shall be 

given approximately 90 days prior to expiration date of each contract period”  

 

Section 10.24 does not discuss termination.  Section 1.4 states that written notice of 

termination at least 120 days before the end of the original term.  Section 10.7 

Cancelation of Contract states.  “RRJA reserves the right to cancel and terminate any 

resulting contract, in part or in whole and for any reason, without penalty, upon 120 

days written notice to the contractor.” 
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5) Section 1.11. – “Proposal Evaluation” on pg. 7 lists compensation and benefit plans as 

part of evaluative criteria for bidders’ proposals.   Are bidders to submit compensation 

and benefit information now or only if invited to do so as part of price negotiations? 
 

Offeror is to submit detail description of the benefit plan that is to be provided to 

their staff.  No pricing will be included in the initial proposal response. 
 

6) For future pricing purposes, please indicate what ADP should be used. (pg. 10) 
 

No pricing will be included in the initial proposal response. 
 

7) Bidders have been asked to submit resumes for the intended on-site Medical Director, 

Psychiatrist, Health Services Administrator, Director of Nursing, Mental Health Director, 

Dentist and Nurse Practitioner (pg. 13).  As this requirement lends the incumbent 

contractor an unfair advantage, would the RRJA consider amending the specifications to 

say that this information must be provided subsequent to contract award, but prior to 

contract start-up or at least be willing to accept detailed job descriptions instead?     
 

No, RRJA will not consider amending the specifications. 
 

8) Please provide contact information for the current Medical Director, Psychiatrist, Health 

Services Administrator, Director of Nursing, Mental Health Director, Dentist and Nurse 

Practitioner. (pg. 13) 
 

The requested information is not available. 
 

9) Please indicate what educational qualifications the Mental Health Director must hold 

(e.g., psychologist, psychiatrist, etc.).  
 

Qualified Mental Health Professional - a person who by education and experience is 

professionally qualified and registered by the board of counseling to provide 

collaborative mental health services for adults or children. 
 

10) Page 14 of the RFP states bidders must submit three client references from jails that have 

average daily populations (ADPs) greater than 1,000, with contracts in effect for more 

than one year – but then the same section goes on to say that at least five of the references 

must be from current contracts.  Page 75 (Exhibit Two) confuses things further by stating 

that bidders must list ten client references, with five from current contracts with jails that 

have average daily inmate populations greater than 1,000, and also says that all contracts 

with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year.  Please indicate what the 

correct requirements are.   Also, please specify if references listed must currently have 

ADPs in excess of 1,000 or may be a current contract that has had an ADP exceeding 

1,000 at some point during the course of the contract.  As average daily populations are 

subject to fluctuation, would the RRJA be willing to accept references from jails with 

rated capacities in excess of 1,000 detainees instead?  
 

An addendum will be issued to change  
 

Section 4.2.3 to read  
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Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with 

jails with rated capacities in excess of 1,000.  Contracts with reference jails must 

have been in effect for at least one year and at least three of the references must be 

from current contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be 

disqualified. 

 

Exhibit 2 shall be changed to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 
 

11) Are ACA accreditation costs the contractor’s responsibility? (pgs. 16-17) 
 

No, only those provisions related to inmate health care as outlined in the standards 
 

12) Are VADOC accreditation costs the contractor’s responsibility? (pg. 17) 
 

No, only those provisions related to inmate health care as outlined in the standards 
 

13) Please provide a list of all paybacks and/or credits issued by the current medical vendor 

for each of the following years: 2016, 2017 and 2018 (to date). (pg. 18) 
 

Fiscal Year 2018  

Month Staffing Payback Intake Screening Health & Physicals 

July $5,966.92  $10,600.00  $26,250.00  

Aug $16,848.25  $13,400.00  $17,100.00  

Sept $11,018.56  $7,050.00  $6,600.00  

Oct $23,713.48  $10,950.00  $22,350.00  

Nov $31,362.65  $15,450.00  $24,600.00  

Dec $31,091.76  $15,150.00  $3,900.00  

Jan $11,123.95  $11,750.00  $3,600.00  

Feb $14,824.48  $7,300.00  $6,750.00  

March $20,560.21  $8,550.00  $4,650.00  

April $23,860.95  $7,450.00  $3,600.00  

May  $23,019.91  $6,400.00  $6,600.00  

June $28,854.54  $12,250.00  $4,050.00  
 

14) Please provide a list of all current position vacancies and the length of time each position 

has been vacant.  Please also provide a list of all past vacancies experienced since 2016 

and the length of time each position remained vacant.  
 

Information is not available. 
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15) Please provide a list of all liquidated damages and penalties assessed to the current 

vendor for each of the following years: 2016, 2017 and 2018 (to date). (pg. 19) 
 

Refer to question number 13. 
 

16) Must annual training on substance abuse, addiction and withdrawal protocols be provided 

by an independent agency or can the successful contractor conduct such training 

themselves? (pg. 25) 
 

The successful contract may conduct the training. 
 

17) Is the January 1, 2019 effective date for Medicaid expansion a firm date or must this be 

pushed back? (pg. 27) 
 

The date is firm. 
 

18) Please describe in detail both the RRJA’s and the medical vendor’s separate 

responsibilities concerning enrolling eligible inmates with Medicaid. Please indicate 

whether staffing positions associated with these tasks are filled by the RRJA or the 

medical vendor. (pg. 27) 
 

Medicaid enrollment is RRJA’s responsibility. 
 

19) On pg. 36, Section 7.13.5. says asymptomatic individuals should have a Mantoux skin 

test or chest x-ray completed within seven days of arrival; whereas, Section 7.20.6. on pg. 

46 says asymptomatic individuals should have a Mantoux skin test or chest radiograph 

within 14 days of arrival.  Please indicate which timeframe is correct.  
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 7.20.6 to read as follows: 

“TB screening of inmates shall be carried out at intake by health care staff through a 

symptom check with the admission process.  Any individual identified as symptomatic 

consistent with TB shall be placed in negative pressure respiratory isolation 

(infirmary) and the on-call physician shall be contacted immediately for orders.  

Asymptomatic individuals shall receive the Mantoux skin test or a chest radiograph 

within seven (7) days of arrival.  “Book-and-Release” intakes (inmates who are 

booked solely for the purpose of identification, and are immediately released from the 

jail) may be exempted from PPD testing. 

For inmates held for the U.S. Marshall Service and Immigrations and Customs 

Enforcement, individuals shall receive the Mantoux skin test or a chest radiograph at 

admission.  The Contractor shall cooperate with these agencies by providing 

appropriate TB test/clearance documentation upon request.” 

 

20) Please describe the 340B program currently in place and what the medical vendor’s 

responsibilities associated with this program are.  (pg. 37) 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 7.13.7 to read as follows: 

“The Contractor shall have a written plan that addresses HIV infection.  The plan 

shall include procedures for the identification; surveillance; immunization, when 

applicable; treatment, when indicated; follow-up; and isolation, when indicated. The 
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Contractor shall make every effort to establish a 340B pharmacy program or a 

reasonable cause as to why not within 6 month of contract start.” 
 

21) Please confirm that the RRJA will contract independently for pharmacy services. Under 

7.14.2. on pg. 38, the RFP states “RRJA will establish a contract for the supply of all 

pharmaceuticals;” however, under 7.16. on pg. 42, “pharmaceutical” is listed as the 

contractor’s responsibility, separate from “pharmacy supplies.”  
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
 

22) Is the medical vendor responsible for any pharmacy costs? If so, please list what they will 

be.  (pg. 38) 
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
 

23) Is there currently a cap or carve-out for pharmacy expenses?  If so, please provide this 

figure and describe. (pg. 38) 
 

No there is not a cap or carve-out for pharmacy expenses. 
 

24) If the vendor is responsible for pharmacy costs, would the RRJA entertain a cap being 

placed on pharmacy expenses moving forward? (pg. 38) 
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
 

25) Please provide all annual pharmacy costs for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 to date. (pg. 

38) 
 

Information is not available. 
 

26) Page 42 of the RFP says the contractor is responsible for the repair, replacement and 

maintenance of all equipment; however, pg. 97 of the RFP says the RRJA is responsible.  

Which is correct? 
 

Successful contractor shall be responsible for the repair of all equipment listed in 

Exhibit 7 as well as any additional equipment that is brought in by the contractor.  
 

27) Please list who is responsible for the cost of routine medical transport and who is 

responsible for emergency medical transport.  In Section 7.26.2. at pg. 50, the RFP says 

the RRJA has an agreement with Prince George EMS and is billed directly; however, 

Section 7.28.1.on pg. 51 says the medical vendor is responsible for such costs. 
 

RRJA is responsible for costs associated with emergency medical transports provided 

by Prince George EMS.  The successful contractor will be responsible for all other 

medical transports provided by EMS. 
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28) What mental health groups are currently available to inmates?  How many groups are 

there and how many inmates does each group host? (pg. 52) 
 

The current vendor does not provide any mental health group counseling sessions.  

The focus of mental health services is individual counseling and risk management. 
 

29) Does every inmate admitted to the RRJA need to have a mental health evaluation 

completed by a qualified mental health professional? (pgs. 53-54) 
 

Yes 
 

30) Is the RRJA currently performing mental health examinations as described in the bullets 

at the bottom of pg. 53/top of pg. 54? 
 

Yes 
 

31) Please provide the number of mental health referrals made per month and the number of 

mental health examinations completed per month for the past year.  If possible, please 

break down mental health referrals by those made at intake vs. those made at a later time. 

(pgs. 53-54) 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

32) Are the dental hygienist and dental assistant the same person?  If not, which one must 

bidders hire and are the hours/duties assigned to the dental assistant on the Staffing 

Matrix the same as those associated with the dental hygienist? (pg. 54)  
 

The dental hygienist and dental assistant are the same. 
 

33) Section 7.32 – “Continuity of Care” (pg. 56) says the contractor shall provide a full-time 

Discharge Planner, but this position does not appear on the Staffing Matrix on pg. 76.  

Should bidders add this position to the staffing matrices they submit? 
 

No  
 

34) Please describe all suicide watch levels. (pg. 60) 
 

Constant Observation 

Close Observation 15 minute watch 

Close Observation 30 minute watch 

 

35) Who is financially responsible for the hospital care of offenders in acute withdrawal or 

frank delirium tremens who are rejected at admission by intake healthcare staff and/or 

referred for immediate inpatient treatment/evaluation (pgs. 60-61 at 7.36.1.)? 
 

RRJA is responsible for individuals rejected at admission by intake healthcare staff 

and/or referred for immediate inpatient treatment/evaluation. 
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36) Are all elements of the prenatal program discussed on pg. 61 at 7.36.4. expected to be 

provided on-site? 
 

Preferred to provide as much services on site as possible. 
 

37) Who pays for the EHR (electronic health record) currently in place?  Please list any and 

all costs the medical vendor would be responsible for if the current EHR system were to 

remain in place. (pg. 64) 
 

RRJA owns the system.  The successful vendor will be responsible for any costs 

associated with interfaces required for the system. 
 

38) Does the current EHR system interface with the OMS, pharmacy, lab, x-ray and 

commissary? (pgs. 64-65) 
 

Yes, EHR system interfaces with OMS and Pharmacy.  The successful contractor with 

be responsible for establishing the interface with lab and x-ray.  
 

39) Section 7.43.4. – “Security Restraints” (pg. 69) says nurses are obligated to report to 

patients any observations made regarding the improper application of security restraints.  

Should this say “patients” or “Jail Administration/Custody staff”? 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 7.43.4 to read as follows: 

“Members of the health care staff will not be involved in security restraints or use of 

force situations other than to observe, treat an individual inmate or staff member if 

injury is incurred, or to check circulation or other aspects of health status as a 

nursing function.  The Contractor shall ensure that nursing staff is familiar with the 

process and that nurses are also obligated to the Jail Administration to report any 

observations regarding the improper application of security restraints.” 
 

40) Who is responsible for the medical costs of inmates housed at the RRJA under contracts 

outside of ICE, U.S. Marshals or the FBOP? Under what scenarios might the medical 

contractor NOT be financially responsible for medical care rendered to inmates housed at 

the RRJA for outside agencies? (pg. 71) 
 

The successful contractor must coordinate payment/reimbursement with the agencies. 
 

41) The RFP states that the RRJA houses about 50 FBOP inmates – is that per day, per month 

or per year? (pg. 71) 
 

Per day 
 

42) The Day Shift totals for the Staffing Matrix (pg. 76) don’t add up (though the total hours 

do).  By our calculations, they should be: 

Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Hrs/Wk FTEs 

112 232 216 240 224 224 112 1,360  34 
 

RRJA contracted day shift staff is 33.  The Pharmacy Tech is an added position that is 

not included in the contracted staffing cost.  Current vendor added this position 

without an increase to the contract price. 
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43) What year is the statistical data for Exhibit 5 on pgs. 78-81 for? 
 

Fiscal Year 2018 
 

44) Could you please provide the “Expenses Incurred vs. Aggregate Cap Amount” report for 

the contract years 2017-2018 (to date) and 2016-2017? (pgs. 82-84) 
 

The current contract does not have an aggregate cap.  Pages 82-84 were examples of 

reports to be provided to RRJA. 
 

45) Please provide reports of all annual off-site care expenses incurred for the years 2016, 

2017 and 2018 to date.  If available, please note any discounts applied and list payments 

made by all parties. (pg. 82) 
 

        RRJA is responsible for all off site expenses. 
 

46) Is there currently a cap on off-site care costs?  If so, please describe.  
 

The current contract does not have an aggregate cap.   
 

47) Would the RRJA entertain any caps placed on medical costs for the new contract? 
 

No 
 

48) On pg. 95 at Section 10.13 – “Contractual Disputes,” the RFP states that the Purchasing 

Agent must render a decision within 30 days in one sentence and within 45 days in 

another.  Which is correct? 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 10.13 to read as follows:  

CONTRACTUAL DISPUTES: Contractual claims arising after final payment shall be 

governed by Section 11-69A of the Code of Virginia. This claim shall be submitted to 

the Purchasing Agent at RRJA within 30 days. Contractual claims, where for money 

or other relief, shall be submitted by the contractor in writing to the Purchasing 

Agent at RRJA no later than sixty days after final payment; however, written notice of 

the contractor’s intention to file such a claim shall have been given at the time of the 

occurrence or beginning of the work upon which the claim is based.  The Purchasing 

Agent shall make a written determination as to the claim within forty-five days after 

receipt.  Such decision shall be final and conclusive unless the contractor appeals 

within six months of the date of the final decision by instituting legal action as 

provided in Section 22-4364 of the Code of Virginia. 
 

49) As listed in Section 10.30 on pgs. 98-99, please provide the following information: 

a) The names and contact information of all on- and off-site providers used by the RRJA 

and the current medical vendor (hospitals, physicians, lab, x-ray, dialysis, etc.) 
 

b) A list of all annual expenditures for each of the current contract’s years 
 

c) A maintenance history and list of supplies consumed related to x-ray equipment for 

each of the current contract’s years 
 

Requested information is not available. 
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50) Please provide all annual laboratory costs for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 to date. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

51) Please provide all annual radiology costs for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 to date. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

52) Please provide bidders with a copy of the current contract and any amendments made 

thereto. 
 

Any offeror requiring a hard copy of the current contract will need to submit a 

request to the Purchasing Manager.  There is a cost associated with producing a 

hard copy of the current contract and the offeror must agree to pay the cost before 

the copies will be provided.  Documents may also be reviewed in the procurement 

office.  
 

53) Does the RRJA have any arrangements with Anthem Blue Cross/Blue Shield?  If so, 

please provide a detailed description of the agreement.  
 

No not at this current time. 
 

54) Please provide staff turnover and vacancy rates for the past year. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

55) How many inmates were receiving treatment for hepatitis C per month for 2016, 2017 

and 2018 to date? 
 

None 
 

56) Please provide the schematics for the Medical Department.  
 

No 
 

57) Please provide a technology inventory for the facilities and indicate what party is 

responsible for each item (e.g., internet connection, operating systems, EHR, OMS, etc.) 
 

Please refer to RFP Page 85 Exhibit 7 
 

58) Please provide a current diagram of the entire IT network. 
 

No 
 

59) Are computers used by the Medical Department on the RRJA’s domain? 
 

Current vendor computer equipment is not located on RRJA’s domain. 
 

60) Who provides IT support for the computers used by the Medical Department? 
 

Successful Contractor provides IT support to their equipment. 
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61) How far is the demarcation point from the Medical Department? 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

MEDIKO  
 

62) What is the aggregate cap amount that you expect to apply to this contract for offsite 

medical services? 
 

None 
 

63) Please identify the minimum education degree (Bachelor’s, Master’s, PhD) and licensure 

(i.e., LPC, LCSW, etc.) for both the Mental Health Director and the mental health 

professionals.  
 

Qualified Mental Health Professional - a person who by education and experience is 

professionally qualified and registered by the board of counseling to provide 

collaborative mental health services for adults or children. 
 

64) Is it your intention to utilize a therapeutic community model for your substance abuse 

treatment program? 
 

The successful vendor is not responsible for any substance abuse program. 
 

CCS  
 

65) Please provide a copy of the contract with the current medical services vendor and any 

amendments issued since the execution of the original contract.  
 

Any offeror requiring a hard copy of the current contract will need to submit a 

request to the Purchasing Manager.  There is a cost associated with producing a 

hard copy of the current contract and the offeror must agree to pay the cost before 

the copies will be provided.  Documents may also be reviewed in the procurement 

office.  
 

66) Section 3.2.2., p. 11. RFP requests 48 months of legal actions pending or settled against 

the company or corporate principles; however, item 4.3 on p. 14 asks for legal claims 

closed and pending during the last five years. Please confirm your litigation history 

requirements.  
 

Please provide 60 months of legal actions pending, settled and closed. 
 

67) Section 4.2.3, p. 14. The RFP requires a list of three client references … and at least five 

of the references must be from current contracts. Please clarify the number of client 

references required.  
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 4.2.3 to read  

Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with 

jails with rated capacities in excess of 1,000. \\\ Contracts with reference jails must 

have been in effect for at least one year and at least five of the references must be 
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from current contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be 

disqualified. 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Exhibit 2 to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 
 

68) Section 5.1.1, p. 15. How many female inmates were part of the daily average population 

in fiscal 2018?  
 

237 
 

69) Section 6.1.1, p. 16. When was the most recent audit by NCCHC?  
 

September 22, 2017 
 

a) Were any deficiencies identified during this audit?  
 

No 
 

b) If so, please identify the deficiencies, and confirm whether they have been resolved.  
 

Not applicable 
 

c) When is the next anticipated NCCHC audit?  
 

June 2020 
 

70) Section 6.1.2, p. 16. When was the most recent audit by ACA?  
 

May 17-19, 2016 
 

a) Were any deficiencies identified during this audit?  
 

Yes 
 

b) If so, please identify the deficiencies, and confirm whether they have been resolved.  
 

Standard #4-ALDF-4B-09 

Findings: Because of the Regional Jails population, they were once again found to be 

in non-compliance with this standard.  This does not cause any problems with 

inmates having an opportunity to shower since they are out of their cells from 6:00 

a.m. to 

11:00 p.m. and can shower at any time. 
 

Standard #4-ALDF-1A-15 

Findings: Due to the jail design, some cells in the medical housing units does not 

have access to natural light. 

Waiver granted based on the physical design and it is not feasible to add outside 

lighting to the area. 
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Standard #4-ALDF-1A-17 

Findings: Due to the jail design four day rooms in the male and female special 

housing units do not have an opening or window to the outside. 

Waiver granted due to the physical design of the facility, windows were not feasible 

to the layout in the housing area. 
 

Standard #1A-ALDF-4B-08 

Findings: Due to the overpopulation some to the housing units have a rational of 12 

to 1 showers. 
 

Plan of Action submitted and approved to reduce the population in the two pods to be 

compliant. 
 

c) When is the next anticipated ACA audit? 
 

2019 Date to be determined.  
 

71) Section 6.1.3, p. 17. When was the most recent audit by ACRS?  
 

May 10-20, 2016 Pre-Release Center 
 

a) Were any deficiencies identified during this audit?  
 

No 
 

b) If so, please identify the deficiencies, and confirm whether they have been resolved.  
 

Not Applicable 
 

c) When is the next anticipated ACRS audit?   
 

2019 Date to be determined.  
 

72) Section 6.1.4, P. 17. When was the most recent audit by VADOC?  
 

March 2018 
 

a) Were any deficiencies identified during this audit?  
 

Yes 
 

b) If so, please identify the deficiencies, and confirm whether they have been resolved.   
 

6VAC15-40-395 

Findings: Inaccurate Medical sharps inventory noted in the medical department. 

Plan of Action: Supplies that are not utilized will be permanently removed.  Daily 

along with a perpetual inventory sheet will implemented to account for sharps. Keys 

to sharps will remain in control of the Charge Nurse. The Director of Nursing will 

monitor the sharps count on a weekly basis.  The Compliance Department makes 

weekly inspection to ensure Medical is accurately accounting for sharps.   
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6VAC15-40-1030 

Findings: Documentation failed to support that 15-day medical assessments of 

segregated inmates were consistently done as required by the standard. 

Plan of Action: A roster of segregated inmates will be sent to the Health Services 

Administrator and Director of Nursing daily.  This roster will be utilized by the nurse 

assigned to complete the fifteen (15) day assessments.   A nurse will be assigned every 

Thursday at 0800 hours to begin segregation/detention assessments.  If the inmate 

refuses the assessment a refusal form will be signed by both the inmate and nurse.  If 

the inmate refuses to sign an officer will witness the refusal and sign the form with the 

nurse.  The Director of Nursing will monitor compliance on a weekly basis.  The 

Compliance Department will conduct weekly audits to ensure compliance with fifteen 

(15) day assessments.  
 

c) When is the next anticipated VADOC audit?  
 

2019 Date to be determined.  
 

73) Section 7.8.5, p. 33. Ambulance Service 

a) Please identify the currently utilized ambulance service(s).  
 

It is mostly Prince George EMS but it could be whoever 911 dispatches 
 

b) Is the Contractor financially responsible for ambulance services?  
 

RRJA is responsible for costs associated with emergency medical transports provided 

by Prince George EMS.  The successful contractor will be responsible for all other 

medical transports provided by EMS. 
 

c) Please provide the number of ambulance trips per month for the most recent 12-

month period.  

 

74) Section 7.13.6, p. 37. Hepatitis C.  

a) How many inmates were treated for Hepatitis C per month during the most recent 12 

month period?  
 

None 
 

75) Section 7.13.7, p. 37. HIV Infection  

a) Please identify and provide contact information for the entity providing the 340B 

pharmacy program.  
 

There is not a 340B program established at the facility. 
 

76) Section 7.13.9, p. 37. Please identify the company currently providing bio-hazardous 

waste removal services.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
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77) Section 7.13.12, p. 38. How many first aid kits are currently distributed throughout the 

facility?  
 

17 
 

78) Section 7.14.2, p. 38. Please confirm that the Contractor will not have financial 

responsibility for pharmaceuticals.  
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
 

79) Will a new pharmacy services contact be established by the RRJA prior to the anticipated 

start date of this contract?  
 

Yes 
 

80) Section 7.17.1, p. 42. Please identify the current laboratory services provider.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

81) Section 7.17.2, p. 42. Please identify the current dialysis services provider.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

82) Section 7.17.5, p. 43. Please identify the current mobile X-ray services provider. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

83) Section 7.18, p. 44. Please confirm whether the Contractor is financially responsible for 

Hospital and/or Specialized Ambulatory services.  
 

Yes the contractor is responsible for hospital and/or specialized ambulatory services. 
 

84) Section 7.28.3, p. 51. On-site Services.  

a) Please identify the current provider of onsite OB/GYN services.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

b) Please identify the current provider of onsite Orthopedics services. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

c) Please identify the current provider of onsite Optometry services.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

85) Section 7.29. p. 52. Can psychiatric services be provided by a combination of a 

Psychiatrist and a Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner?  
 

Propose to RRJA on how you would provide the services. 
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86) Section 7.29. p. 52. Can psychiatric services be provided by a combination of on-site and 

telepsychiatry? 
 

Yes 
 

87) Section 7.29, p. 52. Please identify and describe any mental health group programs 

currently offered to the inmate population.  
 

The current vendor does not provide any mental health group counseling sessions.  

The focus of mental health services is individual counseling and risk management. 
 

88) Section 7.29. p. 52. Any mental health services provided by community resources? Such 

as through a Community Services Board? If so, please identify the entity providing the 

services and the nature of the services provided. How often are mental health staff on-

site?  
 

Richmond Behavior Health and The James House provide peer support groups as 

needed. 
 

89) Section 7.30, p. 54. Please confirm that a dental hygienist is not a staffing requirement.  
 

Dental Hygienist or a Dental Assistant. 
 

90) Section 7.32, p. 56. Continuity of Care.  

a) Please identify the currently utilized community based providers, such as clinics, 

health departments, indigent care facilities, shelters and mental health facilities 

providing continuity of services for released inmates.  
 

Richmond Behavior Health and The James House provide peer support groups as 

needed. 
 

b) Please provide a copy of the current community resources manual used in the medical 

unit. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

91) Section 7.36, p. 60. Please confirm whether methadone or buprenorphine is currently 

utilized for any purpose other than pregnant inmates. 
 

No 
 

92) Section 7.36, p. 60. If Methadone is currently utilized, please identify and provide contact 

information for the provider.  
 

This information may be provided during negation only 
 

93) Section 7.38, p. 62. Please confirm whether a Vivitrol program currently exists at the 

RRJ.  
 

RRJA is in the process of establishing the program now. 
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94) Section 7.41.1. Information Technology Requirements.  

a) How many desktop and how many laptop computers are currently utilized for medical 

services? 
 

20 desk tops 10 laptops 
 

b) Do these computers belong to the RRJA or the current contractor?  
 

Current contractor 
 

c) How many computers will remain in place for use by a new Contractor?  
 

None 
 

d) Is wireless connectivity available throughout the facility? 
 

Yes 
 

95) Section 7.42, p. 67. Please confirm the number of male and female infirmary style 

beds/cells.  
 

3 male,  1 female and hospital beds 
 

96) Section 10.25, p. 95. Please confirm the health services staff will not be responsible for 

monitoring inmates while in the kitchen area. 
 

Physicals are to be done before the inmate starts in the kitchen and a physical is to be 

completed quarterly. 
 

CMC 
 

97) Please provide a copy of the current contract for inmate health care and all associated 

amendments thereto. 
 

Any offeror requiring a hard copy of the current contract will need to submit a 

request to the Purchasing Manager.  There is a cost associated with producing a 

hard copy of the current contract and the offeror must agree to pay the cost before 

the copies will be provided.  Documents may also be reviewed in the procurement 

office.  
 

98) Please provide the full current Staffing matrix for all shifts, with position/title. Does the 

County believe this to be a sufficient staffing plan? 
 

Refer to Exhibit 3 
 

99) Please identify any current vacancies by position/title, shift and length of vacancy. Please 

identify current turnover rate. Please identify if any positions are currently being filled by 

agency personnel. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
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100) Please provide current salaries for all positions listed on the current staffing matrix. 
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

101) Are any members of medical personnel represented by a union? If so, please supply 

bidders with a copy of all applicable union agreements. 
 

No, there is not a union 
 

102) Please provide annual Health Service Statistics extended to cover the last three (3) years. 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

103) Please identify the average length of stay (LOS) for inpatient hospitalizations over the 

last three years. 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

104) What is the current percentage of inmates on prescribed medications?  What is the current 

percentage of inmates on prescribed psychotropic medications? 
 

92.59% 

35% 
 

105) What are the average number of pregnancies per year, and the number of deliveries? Are 

newborns accepted back into the facility and, if so, who pays associated costs? 
 

(1) dawn 1 and 2 
 

Newborns do not come back to the facility and deliveries are covered by medicaid 
 

106) Please provide a list of currently-held onsite clinics. Are there any additional such onsite 

clinics the County finds particularly desirable? 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

107) Who is the current provider for Hemodialysis? Please provide the number of treatments 

completed by day and month. 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

108) Are there any HIV/AIDS inmates currently receiving treatment/medication for their 

condition? 
 

Yes 
 

109) Are there any Hepatitis C inmates currently receiving treatment/medication for their 

condition? 
 

No 
 

110) Are any outside agencies involved in mental healthcare? Are any involved with reentry 

programming? 
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Community Service Board which include District 19 and Richmond Behavioral 

Health are involved in mental healthcare. 

 

111) How many deaths and suicides (successful or attempted) have there been in the past 

two (2) years? 
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
 

112) Please verify the Average Daily Population (ADP) that should be used for bid purposes. 
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA.  Requirements for pricing will be presented in the written request. 
 

113) What is the age of the current dental equipment? When was it was last serviced?  Is the 

dental x-ray inspected and licensed and if so, when was the last time? 
 

Some of the equipment is approximately 20 years old.  Autoclave serviced in 2017.  

The dental x-ray was inspected and licensed in 2018 
 

114) What is the age of the current X-Ray equipment? When was it last serviced? Is the 

current X-Ray equipment digital? 
 

RRJA has dental x-Ray equipment only  
 

115) Does the County project that there will be a need to replace or purchase any on-site 

medical equipment during the term of this contract?  
 

Refer to RFP Section 7.15 
 

116) Where are inmates housed that are going through withdrawal? 
 

Medical housing 2 in the protocol cells 
 

117) Will the current AED stay or must one be purchased, and is it in good working order?  
 

The current AED’s will stay.  Yes they are in working order.  Refer to RFP Section 

7.15 
 

118) How many med passes per day? 
 

RRJA currently has 2 med passes established 
 

119) What is the Jail Management system utilized?  What is the EMR currently being used?  
 

Please refer to RFP Section 7.41.1 
 

120) Does the County currently employ telemedicine? If so, in what specialties and who is 

currently providing the equipment and technical support thereof?   
 

No 
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121) Are you currently having issues with the current staff or vendor that are causing penalties 

to be imposed? 
 

Refer to question number 13. 
 

122) Will the Jail consider altering or waiving the requirement that references are from jails 

with ADPs of greater than 1,000, as this will eliminate certain companies from qualifying 

to submit a proposal?  
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 4.2.3 to read  

Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with 

jails with rated capacities in excess of 1,000.  Contracts with reference jails must 

have been in effect for at least one year and at least three of the references must be 

from current contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be 

disqualified. 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Exhibit 2 to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 
 

WEXFORD HEALTH SOURCES, INC.  
 

123) Please provide a copy of the current Riverside Regional Jail Authority (RRJA) health 

services contract, including any exhibits, attachments, and amendments.  
 

Any offeror requiring a hard copy of the current contract will need to submit a 

request to the Purchasing Manager.  There is a cost associated with producing a 

hard copy of the current contract and the offeror must agree to pay the cost before 

the copies will be provided.  Documents may also be reviewed in the procurement 

office.  
 

124) Please provide (by year) the amounts of any staffing paybacks/credits the RRJA has 

assessed against the incumbent Contractor over the term of the current contract. 
 

Month Staffing Payback Intake Screening Health & Physicals 

July $5,966.92  $10,600.00  $26,250.00  

Aug $16,848.25  $13,400.00  $17,100.00  

Sept $11,018.56  $7,050.00  $6,600.00  

Oct $23,713.48  $10,950.00  $22,350.00  

Nov $31,362.65  $15,450.00  $24,600.00  

Dec $31,091.76  $15,150.00  $3,900.00  

Jan $11,123.95  $11,750.00  $3,600.00  

Feb $14,824.48  $7,300.00  $6,750.00  

March $20,560.21  $8,550.00  $4,650.00  

April $23,860.95  $7,450.00  $3,600.00  

May  $23,019.91  $6,400.00  $6,600.00  

June $28,854.54  $12,250.00  $4,050.00  
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125) Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any non-staffing penalties/ 

liquidated damages the RRJA has assessed against the incumbent Contractor over the 

term of the current contract.  
 

Month Staffing Payback Intake Screening Health & Physicals 

July $5,966.92  $10,600.00  $26,250.00  

Aug $16,848.25  $13,400.00  $17,100.00  

Sept $11,018.56  $7,050.00  $6,600.00  

Oct $23,713.48  $10,950.00  $22,350.00  

Nov $31,362.65  $15,450.00  $24,600.00  

Dec $31,091.76  $15,150.00  $3,900.00  

Jan $11,123.95  $11,750.00  $3,600.00  

Feb $14,824.48  $7,300.00  $6,750.00  

March $20,560.21  $8,550.00  $4,650.00  

April $23,860.95  $7,450.00  $3,600.00  

May  $23,019.91  $6,400.00  $6,600.00  

June $28,854.54  $12,250.00  $4,050.00  
 

126) Are either of the RRJA facilities currently subject to any court orders or legal directives? 

If “yes,” please provide copies of the order/directive.  
 

No 
 

127) With regard to lawsuits (frivolous or otherwise) pertaining to inmate health care:  

a) How many have been filed against the RRJA and/or the incumbent health care 

provider in the last three years?  
 

2 
 

b) How many have been settled in that timeframe?  
 

1- dismissed 
    

128) Please provide the following data regarding the size of the inmate population.  

a) Three years’ worth of facility-specific historical data 
 

2017 – 14,929 intakes 

2016 – 13,612 intakes 
 

b) Five-year population projections  
  

Requested information is not available. 
 

129) Please provide two years’ worth of historical data on the number of RRJA intakes.  
 

2017 – 14,929 intakes 

2016 – 13,612 intakes 
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130) We understand the RRJA facilities are currently accredited by the American Correctional 

Association (ACA) and the National Commission on Correctional Health Care 

(NCCHC). Please provide the following information regarding accreditation. 
 

a) Most recent accreditation date for the facilities.  
 

ACA – May 17-19, 2016 

ACRS - May 10-20, 2016 (P-re-Release Center) 

NCCHC – September 22, 2017 

PREA – April 2017 

VADOC – March 2018 
 

b) Copy of most recent accreditation audit report for each facility.  
  

No 
 

131) For each RRJA facility, please provide the minimum health service staffing required by 

the current contract (by shift and day of the week).  
 

Refer to Exhibit 3- Staffing Table 
 

132) Please provide the current staffing plan for the Pre-Release Center?  
 

Refer to Exhibit 3- Staffing Table 
 

133) For each RRJA facility, please provide a listing of any current health service vacancies, 

by position.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

134) Has staffing of the Medical and Mental Health services been stable or has there been 

excessive turnover? Likewise, has there been any turnover of onsite management 

personnel in the past year?  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

135) With regard to background checks, who is financially responsible for paying for this 

service: the RRJA or the Contractor?  
 

RRJA 
 

136) Will the RRJA allow “grandfathered” credentialing for incumbent staff already employed 

by (or contracted with) the current health care Contractor?  
 

No objections, as long as the credentials are current. 
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137) Please provide the salaries/wages your incumbent health service Contractor is paying to 

its staff at the RRJA facilities.  
 

Position Title Salary Benefits Total 

Health Services Administrator  $49.28  $8.59  $57.87  

Director of Nursing $41.89  $7.79  $49.68  

Medical Director/Staff Physician $128.13  $12.74  $140.87  

Mid-Level Provider $51.25  $8.80  $60.05  

Director of Mental Health $34.19  $6.99  $41.48  

Psychiatrist $158.88  $11.11  $169.99  

Mental Health Professional $26.65  $6.12  $32.77  

QMHP $31.90  $6.42  $38.32  

Administrative Assistant $18.45  $5.24  $23.69  

Charge Nurse/RN $35.88  $7.13  $43.01  

Staff Nurse/RN (Intake and Infirmary) $33.83  $6.91  $40.73  

CQI Nurse (LPN QI/Infection Control) $22.55  $5.58  $28.13  

LPN $22.55  $5.58  $28.13  

Phlebotomist/CMA $17.43  $5.17  $22.59  

Medical Records Clerk $15.38  $4.94  $20.32  

Dentist $84.05  $11.47  $95.52  

Dental Assistant $16.91  $5.85  $22.77  
 

a) How old is this data?  
 

March 1, 2017 
 

b) Where did this data come from, for example, State/County records, data from the 

incumbent Contractor, etc.?  
 

Current contractor 
 

138) Please confirm that the time health services staff members spend in orientation, in-service 

training, and continuing education classes will count toward the hours required by the 

contract.  
 

CEU hours do not count.  Pre-approved hours may count. 
 

139) Please confirm that overtime and agency hours will count toward the hours required by 

the contract.  
 

Overtime and agency hours can count with pre-approval. 
 

140) Please confirm that paid-time-off hours will count toward the hours required by the 

contract.  
 

Paid time off for backfill positions do not count aside from list holidays. 
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141) We thank the RRJA for the inventory of office equipment currently in use at the RRJA 

facilities. While there were many items on the list that we will utilize, we did not see PCs, 

printers, fax machines, or copiers. Please provide a list of these items that will be 

available for use by the new Contractor.  
 

None, the successful contractor will be responsible for providing their staff with PCs, 

printers, fax machines, and copiers. 
 

142) How do personnel currently access the Internet while in the health care unit:  

(a) through a RRJA network or  

(b) through connectivity provided by the incumbent Contractor? Who will be financially 

responsible for Internet access in the new contract? 
 

Current contractor access a subnet maintained by the contractor that utilizes RRJA’s 

internet circuit.   
 

143) Are the current Contractor’s PCs, printers, etc. on the RRJA’s network? If not, please 

provide answers t o the following.  
 

Current contractor is on their own network that is routed through RRJA’s internet.  
 

(a) Will the new Contractor need to provide any type of network?  
 

RRJA does not require the successful contractor to provide a network unless they 

prefer to have a separate subnet.  The successful contractor can use RRJA’s existing 

network and domain.   
 

(b) If we do need to provide our own network, how do we connect to eOMIS?   
 

Not applicable. 
 

144) How do inmates currently receive dialysis services:  

(a) onsite, with Vendor-owned equipment (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR); or  

(b) offsite?  
 

Onsite Dialysis 
 

145) Does current Nevada law mandate any special rates (Medicaid, Medicare, Workers 

Compensation, or other discounted rates) for the offsite treatment of RRJA inmates? If 

“yes,” please provide a copy of this law 
 

RRJA is located in Virginia.  There are not any current laws pertaining to special 

rates for inmates.   
 

146) For the RRJA facilities, please indicate how many hours per week each specialty clinic is 

held.  
 

Refer to statistical data in Exhibit 5 
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147) Please identify the number, type, and timeframes of any backlogs (chronic care clinics, 

offsite referrals, dental encounters, etc.) that currently exist at the RRJA facilities.  
 

As of September 2018 there was a Provider Chronic Care backlog of 37and Provider 

Sick Call backlog of 20. 
 

148) With regard to the RRJA’s infirmary are patients in the unit always within sight or 

hearing of a qualified health care professional?  
 

Refer to RFP Section 7.42 
 

149) How many medication carts will the RRJA make available for the use of the incoming 

Contractor?  
 

8 
 

150) Please provide the following information about medication administration.  

(a) How often is medication distributed each day? 
 

There are currently 2 medication passes established each day 
 

(b) How long does it take to perform the average medication pass?  
 

The average medication pass is approximately 2 hours 
 

151) Please provide copies of the following documents.  

(a) The drug formulary currently in use   
 

RRJA will issue a separate RFP for Pharmacy Services. 
 

(b) The laboratory formulary currently in use   
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

(c) A current pharmacy/formulary management report  
 

 RRJA’s will issue a separate RFP for Pharmacy Services. 
 

152) On average, what percentage of RRJA inmates are prescribed psychotropic drugs each 

month?  
 

35% 
 

153) What is the average monthly number of inmates receiving pharmaceutical treatment for 

the following conditions?  
  

RRJA’s will issue a separate RFP for Pharmacy Services. 
 

a) Hepatitis C  
 

b) HIV/AIDS  
 

c) Hemophilia and other bleeding disorders  
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154) We thank the RRJA for the monthly statistical data provided in RFP Exhibit 5: Statistical 

Data (page 78). Please confirm that the statistical information was for the 2018 Fiscal 

Year. For further clarification, please provide the latest monthly statistical data for each 

of the following categories.  
 

Yes, the data was from FY 2018  
 

a) Number of (offsite) inpatient hospital days 
 

July 10 August 9  
  

b) Number of outpatient surgeries  
 

July 5 August 5 
 

c) Number of outpatient referrals   
 

July 54 August 44 
 

d) Number of trips to the emergency department (ED)  
 

July 17 August 12  
 

e) Number of ED referrals resulting in hospitalization  
 

July 4 August 3 
 

f) Number of ambulance transports  s 
 

July 9 August 2 
 

g) Number of dialysis treatments  
 

July 25 August 10 
 

155) Please provide annual spend amounts for the past three years for the following categories.  
 

a) Total offsite care  

b) Total pharmaceutical expenditures  

c) Laboratory services d. X-ray services  
 

Select information will be provided to selected Offerors submitting pricing proposals 
 

156) Under the new contract, who will be financially responsible for these items: the RRJA or 

the Contractor?  
 

a) Inpatient hospitalization  

b) Outpatient surgeries  

c) Other outpatient referrals  

d) ER visits  

e) Ambulance transports  

f) Offsite dialysis  

g) Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)  

h) Pharmaceuticals  
 

Select information will be provided to selected Offerors submitting pricing proposals 
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157) Under the current contract, who is financially responsible for these items: the RRJA or 

the Contractor?  
 

a) Inpatient hospitalization  

b) Outpatient surgeries  

c) Other outpatient referrals  

d) ER visits  

e) Ambulance transports  

f) Offsite dialysis  

g) Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)  

h) Pharmaceuticals  
 

All offsite cost paid by Contractor and reimbursed by RRJA.  Pharmaceuticals are the 

current contractor’s responsibility 
 

158) Please confirm that under the new contract, the Contractor will not be financially 

responsible for any of the following services.  
 

a) Elective or mandated abortion  
 

Yes, unless there is a court order for the procedure. 
 

b) Elective care (care which if not provided would not, in the opinion of the Medical 

Director, cause the inmate’s health to deteriorate or cause definite and/or irreparable 

harm to the inmate’s physical status) 
 

Refer to Section 7.44, 7.53.1 and 7.53.2 of the RFP 
 

c) Autopsies  
 

Successful contractor will not responsible 
 

d) Any organ (or other) transplant or related costs, including, but not limited to labs, 

testing, pharmaceuticals, pre- or post-op follow-up care, or ongoing care related to a 

transplant, etc.  
 

Refer to RFP Section 7 
 

e) Medications for the treatment of bleeding disorders, including, but not limited to 

Factor VIII and IX  
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
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159) Please confirm that the following costs will be included under any CAP on offsite care.  
 

a) Inpatient hospitalization  

b) Outpatient surgeries  

c) Other outpatient referrals  

d) ER visits  

e) Ambulance transportation  

f) Offsite dialysis  

g) Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)  
 

The current contract does not have an aggregate cap.  Pricing proposals are not to 

be provided until a written request is received from RRJA.  Requirements for pricing 

will be presented in the written request 
 

160) Is there currently a CAP on offsite care and/or pharmaceuticals. If “yes,” please provide 

answers to the following.  
 

a) Please identify the CAP amount for which the RRJA wishes bidders to submit 

pricing.  
 

b) Please identify the amount of any offsite care and/or pharmacy CAP in the current 

contract.  
 

c) For each of the past three (3) years, please indicate by how much (if at all) total RRJA 

offsite care and/or pharmaceutical expenses have exceeded the contracted CAP 

amount.  
 

The current contract does not have an aggregate cap 
 

161) Please identify the relative weight the RRJA will assign to each evaluation criteria listed 

in the RFP §1.11: Proposal Evaluation (page 7).  
 

Exceed, Meets, Fails 
 

162) Please provide the formula (or other methodology) the RRJA will use to evaluate, rank, 

and assign scoring points to bidders’ submitted prices.  
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA.  Requirements for pricing will be presented in the written request. 
 

163) RFP §4.1.2: Resume Information (page 13) requires bidders to provide resumes for the 

bidder's proposed staff. This gives the incumbent Contractor a distinct and unfair 

advantage. Other bidders will not hire specific individuals for the RRJA project prior to 

being awarded the business. Therefore, in the interest of maintaining a fair and equitable 

solicitation process and providing a level playing field for all bidders, will the RRJA 

accept job descriptions in lieu of actual names and resumes?  
 

No, RRJA will not consider job descriptions in lieu of actual resumes. 
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164) We have noticed that in many cases, different components of a solicitation contain 

conflicting language and specifications. Please confirm the latest dated document always 

holds precedence, so bidders know which information to use in case of conflicting data 

sets among the RRJA solicitation materials (original RFP, addenda, responses to 

questions). 
 

In the event of any inconsistency in the contract documents, such inconsistency shall 

be resolved by giving precedence in the order set forth Addenda, RFP. 
 

165) Does the RRJA require bidders to submit their Technical and Pricing proposals in 

separately sealed envelopes?  
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA.  Requirements for pricing will be presented in the written request 
 

166) Please confirm who is financially responsible for the costs of non-emergency ambulance 

services.  
 

The successful contractor will be responsible. 
 

167) Per the statement in RFP §2: General Information (page 10), we understand that “The 

average daily population for the fiscal year of 2018 was 1,538; this is including the pre-

release center (118). The ADP of RRJA may increase to over 1,600 including the pre-

release center (200).” So that the RRJA receives consistent “apples to apples” pricing, 

please indicate what ADP the RRJA wants bidders to base their pricing on.  
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA.  Requirements for pricing will be presented in the written request. 
 

168) We appreciate the information in the “Expenses Incurred vs. Aggregate Cap Amounts 

Report for July 2015 - June 2016 as of December 2015,” found on page 82 of the RFP. 

Please also provide an “Expenses Incurred vs. Aggregate Cap Amounts Report” for the 

following years.  
 

a) July 2016 to June 2017  

b) July 2017 to June 2018  
 

The current contract does not have an aggregate cap.  Pages 82-84 were examples of 

reports to be provided to RRJA. 
 

169) Does the RRJA pay for phone services (e.g., desk phones, fax) in the medical units?  
 

RRJA provides telephone services and desk telephones.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible to reimbursement of all long distance calls made by contract staff. 
 

170) Please verify that the RRJA has no objection to the Contractor utilizing telepsychiatry? 

Please verify that the RRJA, given the volume of patients, would like to expand health 

care services to include telemedicine in an effort to reduce offsite movement?  
 

RRJA has no objections to the Contractor utilizing tele-psychiatry.  Propose to RRJA 

how you would provide the services. 
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171) Does the RRJA currently utilize telehealth equipment in the facilities? If so, please 

provide the following.  
 

a) What are the make and model of the equipment?  

b) Who owns the equipment:  

i) the RRJA; or  

ii) the incumbent?  

c) Will the equipment remain for the new Contractor?  

d) Who is responsible for the equipment’s maintenance?  
 

RRJA does not utilize telehealth currently 
 

172) The Health Care provider will be responsible to provide/host its own server to support the 

EMR? RRJA stated it is providing internet connection. Could you give further details on 

who is responsible for the operating systems, database structure, network components, 

and listing of current software/hardware; and who is responsible for this?  

 

RRJA does not require the successful contractor to provide a network unless they 

prefer to have a separate subnet.  The successful contractor can use RRJA’s existing 

network and domain.   

 

173) With regard to the offsite medical care CAP, please provide answers to the following.  

a) If the current provider exceeded the offsite medical care CAP, how much excess was 

paid by RRJA?  

b) What was the total offsite expense for outpatient/specialty care for the past two Fiscal 

Years?  

c) c. What was the total offsite expense for inpatient hospital care for the past two Fiscal 

Years?  
 

There is not a cap on the current contract 
 

174) How many inmates are currently Medicaid eligible?  
 

Estimated about 60 
 

175) Per RFP §1.9: Schedule (page 6), please clarify that only the Technical Proposal is due 

on or before October 26, 2018 by 11:00 AM. It appears that, per Item 7 in the Schedule, 

the “Tentative Pricing Proposals” are not due until November 30, 2018. Please confirm 

that we are not to include a Pricing Proposal (or any pricing) with the Technical Proposal, 

which is due on October 26, 2018.  
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA. 
 

176) Has the current Contractor staffed with agency personnel above 10% over the past year? 
 

No 
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177) Regarding RFP §4.2.3: Client References (page 14), there is a discrepancy in the number 

of references required, as the instructions say “three” in one part of the requirement, but 

“five” in another. Please clarify  

(a) how many references the RRJA is requiring from each bidder and  

(b) how many must be from current clients.  
 

An addendum will be issued to change Section 4.2.3 to read  

Each submission must include a list of three client references providing information 

described in Exhibit 2 – Client References.  References must be from contracts with 

jails with rated capacities in excess of 1,000.  Contracts with reference jails must 

have been in effect for at least one year and at least three of the references must be 

from current contracts.  This information must be provided or the submission may be 

disqualified. 
 

An addendum will be issued to change Exhibit 2 to read  

List ten client references providing information described below.  At least three 

references must be from current contracts with jails with rated capacities in excess of 

1,000.  Contracts with these jails must have been in effect for at least one year. 
 

178) Please provide more detail or a legislative reference where bidders can learn more about 

the “new Medicaid expansion regulation that will be effective January 2019” referenced 

in RFP §7.2: Objectives of the Contractor (page 27).  
 

New Medicaid expansion regulations are currently being developed. 
 

179) With regard to RFP §7.7.2: Peer Review and Supervision (page 32), is the external peer 

review to be conducted every two years in addition to the peer review conducted twice-

yearly and annually by (respectively) a corporate physician and site-level clinical 

leadership?  

 

danna 

180) Regarding RFP §7.14.2: Pharmacy Services (page 38), please clarify the following.  

a) Please confirm our understanding that under the new health care contract, the RRJA 

will contract directly for pharmacy services, meaning that these (pharmacy) services 

will not be included in the scope of the health care Contractor’s work.  
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
 

b) Under this arrangement, who will be financially responsible for the cost of drugs: (a) 

the RRJA or (b) the health care Contractor?  
 

RRJA will be responsible for pharmacy costs.  The successful vendor will be 

responsible for cost management of the pharmaceuticals and the management of the 

day to day program.  
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181) RFP §7.30: Dental Program (page 54) requires the presence of a Dental Hygienist. 

However, a Dental Hygienist is not listed in RFP Exhibit 3: Staffing Table (page 76). 

Please clarify whether the RRJA wants a Dental Hygienist in its preferred staffing or not.  
 

Dental Hygienist or a Dental Assistant. 
 

182) Regarding RFP §7.41.1: Information Technology Requirements (page 64), please clarify 

the following.  

a) Please confirm that the health care Contractor will not be responsible for any costs 

associated with the EMR if the Contractor chooses to continue using the RRJA’s 

existing eOMIS system.  
 

The successful contractor will not be responsible for the cost of the EMR system 

except for outside interface costs. 
 

b) Please provide a list of the ancillary vendor systems with which the RRJA’s eOMIS 

system is currently integrated.  
 

Requested information is not available. 
 

c) Who will be financially responsible for new and/or additional ancillary vendor 

interfaces:  

(i) the RRJA or  

(ii) the health care Contractor?  
 

The successful Contractor 
 

183) Per RFP Exhibit 3: Staffing Table (page 76), what is the required educational level of the 

Mental Health Director?  
 

Qualified Mental Health Professional - a person who by education and experience is 

professionally qualified and registered by the board of counseling to provide 

collaborative mental health services for adults or children. 
 

184) Per RFP Exhibit 5: Statistical Data (page 78), please define “Suicide Events.” Does this 

include suicide attempts and self-injurious behaviors?  
 

Yes it includes suicide attempts and self –injurious behavior 
 

185) Per RFP Exhibit 5: Statistical Data (page 78), please confirm the monthly “Mental Health 

Caseload” for May, the Year to Date, and Monthly Average.  
 

May should have been 601 YTD 6232 Average 519.33 
 

186) Please provide data for the number of suicides in the last two years’ time.  
 
 

 

 

 

187) Please provide information on the current type(s) and number(s) of mental health 

treatment groups conducted.  
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 The current vendor does not provide any mental health group counseling sessions.  The 

focus of mental health services is individual counseling and risk management. 

 

188) Please provide information on any external or community resources conducting 

behavioral health treatments in the RRJA. 
 

Richmond Behavioral Health 

The James House 
 

189) Please describe the mental health services required at the Pre-Release Center.  
 

Pre-Release is part of the facility therefore there are not any different requirements. 
 

190) Please describe the process for mental health patient referral for those who cannot be 

managed with the scope of services currently provided at the RRJA.  
 

Propose to RRJA how your company would provide the services. 
 

191) In RFP §7.37: Management of Chemical Dependency (page 61), what are the current 

program and treatments provided for inmates who require substance use services?  
 

RRJA currently does not have any programs established through the current vendor. 
 

192) Per RFP §7.29.1: Mental Health Evaluation (page 52), the RRJA notes that “the 

American Psychiatric Association’s Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (4) of Mental 

Disorders (DSM-4) shall be the basis for service consideration.” A fifth volume of the 

Manual is currently in publication. Does the RRJA approve the use of the most current 

volume of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (DSM-5)?  
 

Yes, RRJA approves the use of the most current volume 
 

193) Under the new contract, will the new health care Contractor be financially responsible for 

the following.  
 

a) Individuals who become ill prior to admission  

b) Individuals who are not medically cleared during intake  

c) Federal inmates 
 

Pricing proposals are not to be provided until a written request is received from 

RRJA.  Requirements for pricing will be presented in the written request 

 


